
 

 

 
Date of despatch: Monday, 22 January 2018 

 
To the Members of Slough Borough Council 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 

You are summoned to attend a Meeting of the Council of this Borough which 
will be held in the The Curve - William Street, Slough, Berkshire, SL1 1XY  on  
Tuesday, 30th January, 2018 at 7.00 pm, when the business in the Agenda below 
is proposed to be transacted. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

NEIL WILCOX 
Director of Finance & Resources 

 
PRAYERS 

AGENDA 
 
Apologies for Absence 

  PAGE 
1.   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary or other 
Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at the 
meeting must declare that interest and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed. 
 
The Mayor will ask Members to confirm that they do not have a 
declarable interest. All Members making a declaration will be required to 
complete a Declaration of Interests at Meetings form detailing the nature 
of their interest. 

 

 

2.   To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Council 
meetings held on 28th November 2017 and 19th December 
2017 
 

1 - 14 

3.   To receive the Mayor's Communications. 
 

 

Public Questions 
 
4.   Questions from Electors under Procedure Rule 9.  



 
  PAGE 

 

 

Recommendations of Cabinet and Committees 
[Notification of Amendments required by 10 a.m. on Monday 29 January] 
 

5.   Recommendations of the Cabinet from its meeting held on 
22nd January 2018 
 

15 - 20 

 • Housing Revenue Account Rents and Service 
Charges 2018/19  

 

 

Officer Reports 
 
6.   Appointment of Interim Chief Executive (Head of Paid 

Service) 
 

21 - 28 

7.   Appointment Process for Chief Executive (Head of Paid 
Service) 
 

29 - 46 

8.   Appointment to Committees, Panels and Outside Bodies. 
 

47 - 52 

9.   Consent for Alterations - Kashmiri Karahi Restaurant, Salt 
Hill Park, Slough 
 

53 - 76 

Motions 
 

10.   To consider Motions submitted under procedure Rule 14. 
 

77 - 78 

Member Questions 
 

11.   To note Questions from Members under Procedure Rule 10 
(as tabled). 
 

 

12.   Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

 

 It is recommended that the press and public be excluded 
from the remainder of the meeting as the items to be 
considered contain exempt information relating to individuals 
as defined in Paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 

 

PART II 
 

13.   Part II Minutes - 28th November and 19th December 2017 79 - 82 
 

 

Press and Public 
 

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will however be asked 
to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please contact the Democratic Services Officer 
shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  By entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings.  Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of a meeting is requested to advise 
the Democratic Services Officer before the start of the meeting.  Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming 
should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing 
the meeting.  The use of flash photography, additional lighting or any non hand held devices, including tripods, will not be 
allowed unless this has been discussed with the Democratic Services Officer. 
 

 



 
 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
 

At a Meeting of the Council for the Borough of Slough held at the The Curve - William 
Street, Slough, Berkshire, SL1 1XY on Tuesday, 28th November, 2017 at 7.00 pm 

 
Present:-  The Worshipful the Mayor (Councillor Shah), in the chair; Councillors 

Ajaib, Anderson, Bains, Bal, Bedi, Brooker, Carter, Chahal, Chaudhry, 
Cheema, Chohan, Dar, Davis, M Holledge, N Holledge, Hussain, Mann, 
Matloob, Munawar, Nazir, Pantelic, Parmar, Plenty, Qaseem, Rana, 
Rasib, Sadiq, A Sandhu, R Sandhu, Sarfraz, Shah, Sharif, Smith, Sohal, 
Strutton, Swindlehurst, Usmani and Wright. 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillors Coad, Amarpreet Dhaliwal, Arvind Dhaliwal 
and Kelly. 
 

29. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Bal declared that his daughter worked for Slough Borough Council. 
 
Councillor Munawar declared that his son worked for arvato. 
 
Councillor Rasib declared that his daughter worked for Slough Borough Council. 
 

30. To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Council held on 28th 
September 2017  
 
Resolved  -  That the minutes of the meeting held on 28th September 2017 be 

approved as a correct record.  
 

31. To receive the Mayor's Communications.  
 
The Mayor thanked all Members who attended the events arranged throughout 
the Borough for Remembrance Sunday and Armistice Day. A special thanks was 
given to Linda Hillier, the Mayor’s Chaplain, for her help and assistance with the 
arrangements for the annual occasion. 
 
The Christmas Lights Switch-On took place on Saturday, 18th November in the 
Town Square. The event was well attended and the crowd enjoyed the 
entertainment and firework display.  

  
The Mayor informed the meeting that Councillors Hussain, Sadiq, Chahal and 
Smith had spent a night with just a cardboard box for shelter as they took part in 
the London and Slough Run Big Sleepout to raise awareness and funds for 
homeless people living in Slough. The London and Slough Run has been 
running emergency night shelters for the past 4 years and the sponsorship 
raised would ensure that the shelters were open again this year.   

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



Council - 28.11.17 
 
 

32. To consider a motion submitted under Procedure Rule 14.1 (C) - To 
Remove the Leader of the Council and Elect a New Leader  
 
Prior to consideration of the motion, Councillor Munawar addressed the meeting 
and tendered his resignation as the Leader of the Council. The motion to remove 
Councillor Munawar as Leader was therefore not moved.   
 
It was proposed by Councillor Pantelic, 
Seconded by Councillor Mann, 
 
“That Councillor Swindlehurst be elected as Leader of the Council.” 
 
A prior request having been made for the record of the voting: 
 
There voted for Councillor Swindlehurst: 
 
Councillors Ajaib, Anderson, Bains, Bal, Bedi, Brooker, Carter, Chaudhry, 
Cheema, Chohan, Dar, Davis, M.Holledge, N.Holledge, Hussain, Mann, Matloob, 
Munawar, Nazir, Pantelic, Parmar, Plenty, Qaseem, Rana, Rasib, Sadiq, 
A.Sandhu, Sarfraz, Shah, Sharif, Sohal, Swindlehurst  and 
Usmani……………………………………………………………………..……… 33 
 
There abstained from voting: 
 
Councillor Chahal, R.S Sandhu, Smith, Strutton and Wright …………………. 5 
 
Resolved –  That Councillor Swindlehurst be elected as Leader of the Council 

for a period of four years.   
 
 

33. Questions from Electors under Procedure Rule 9.  
 
None received within the relevant time period. 
 

34. Recommendations of the Member Panel on the Constitution from the 
meeting held on 12th September 2017  
 
It was moved by Councillor Hussain,  
Seconded by Councillor Swindlehurst,  
 
‘That in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 27.1, Procedure Rule 13.1 
(notice of amendment to Committee recommendations) be suspended to allow 
the following amendments to be moved: 
 

(a) That a decision on the revised Councillors’ Code of Conduct be 
deferred to consider the inclusion of information on Members’ 
obligations as Trustees. 
 

(b) That the deadline for receipt of Public Questions in Council Procedure 
Rule 9 be amended to 10.00 am on the fourth working day before the 
day of the meeting.’ 

Page 2



Council - 28.11.17 
The recommendations were put to the vote and agreed unanimously.  
 
 Resolved - That in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 27.1, Procedure 

Rule 13.1 (notice of amendment to Committee recommendations) 
be suspended to allow the following amendments to be moved: 

 
(a) That a decision on the revised Councillors’ Code of Conduct 

be deferred to consider the inclusion of information on 

Members’ obligations as Trustees. 

 
(b) That the deadline for receipt of Public Questions in Council 

Procedure Rule 9 be amended to 10.00 am on the fourth 

working day before the day of the meeting. 

35. Appointment of Monitoring Officer  
 
(The Service Lead, Governance left the meeting) 
 
It was moved by Councillor Swindlehurst,  
Seconded by Councillor Hussain,  
 
“That a decision on the designation of the Council’s Monitoring Officer be 
deferred to an Extraordinary meeting of the Council to enable consideration to be 
given to whether the proposed arrangements are sufficiently robust and well 
resourced to deal with the volume of work associated with the role.”   
 
The recommendation was put to the vote and agreed unanimously.  
 
Resolved  - That a decision on the designation of the Council’s Monitoring 

Officer be deferred to an Extraordinary meeting of the Council to 
enable consideration to be given to whether the proposed 
arrangements are sufficiently robust and well resourced to deal with 
the volume of work associated with the role.   

 
(The Service Lead, Governance returned to the meeting) 
 

36. Parliamentary Constituency Boundary Review - Council Response to 
Revised Proposals October 2017  
 
It was moved by Councillor Swindlehurst,  
Seconded by Councillor Hussain,  
 
“That the Council’s response to the Commission’s revised proposals as set out at 
Appendix 2 to the report be approved.” 
 
The recommendation was put to the vote and agreed unanimously. 
 
Resolved - That the Council’s response to the Commission’s revised proposals 

as set out at Appendix 2 to the report be approved. 
 
 
 

Page 3



Council - 28.11.17 
 

37. Progress Update on Council Motion of 26th July 2016 - Safer Slough 
Partnership  
 
It was moved by Councillor Plenty, 
Seconded by Councillor Bains, 
 
“The Council is requested to resolve that the work reported by the Safer Slough 
Partnership to the NCS Scrutiny Panel on 26th June 2017 be endorsed as a 
suitable response to the Council motion of 26th July 2016.” 
 
The recommendation was put to the vote and agreed unanimously. 
 
Resolved -  That the work reported by the Safer Slough Partnership to the 

Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel on 26th 
June 2017 be endorsed as a suitable response to the Council 
motion of 26th July 2016. 

 
38. To consider a Motion submitted under procedure Rule 14.1 (A)  

 
It was moved by Councillor Bains,  
Seconded by Councillor Strutton, 
 
‘This Council will adhere to its ‘Actions Speak Louder’ values and will be open 
and transparent in its actions and fully investigate all current and future 
allegations of abuse and bullying from senior members of staff and elected 
members.’ 
 
The motion was put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved -   This Council will adhere to its ‘Actions Speak Louder’ values and 

will be open and transparent in its actions and fully investigate all 
current and future allegations of abuse and bullying from senior 
members of staff and elected members. 

 
39. To note Questions from Members under Procedure Rule 10 (as tabled).  

 
Copies of three questions received from Councillors Anderson and Swindlehurst, 
together with the replies, were tabled. 
 

40. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
(The Interim Chief Executive left the meeting) 
 
It was moved by Councillor Bains, 
Seconded by Councillor Wright,  
 
“That the meeting remain in Part I for consideration of Agenda Item 13 – 
Appointment of Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service.”   
 
A prior request having been made for the record of the voting: 
 
 

Page 4



Council - 28.11.17 
 
There voted for the recommendation: 
 
Councillors Bains, Chahal, R.S Sandhu, Smith, and Wright………………… 5 
 
There voted against the recommendation: 
 
Councillors Ajaib, Anderson, Bal, Bedi, Brooker, Carter, Chaudhry, Cheema, 
Chohan, Dar, Davis, M.Holledge, N.Holledge, Hussain, Mann, Matloob, 
Munawar, Nazir, Pantelic, Parmar, Plenty, Qaseem, Rana, Rasib, Sadiq, 
A.Sandhu, Sarfraz, Sharif, Sohal, Strutton, Swindlehurst  and Usmani…….32  
 
There abstained from voting: 
 
The Worshipful The Mayor, Councillor Shah……………….. …………………. 1 
 
Resolved - That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the 

meeting as the item to be considered contains exempt information 
relating to individuals as defined in Paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 
12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 

 
Below is a summary of the matters considered during Part II of the agenda. 
 

41. Appointment of Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service  
 
The Council agreed not to make an appointment to the role of Chief Executive 
and Head of Paid Service. 
 
 

Chair 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 7.00 pm and closed at 9.12 pm) 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
 

At an Extraordinary Meeting of the Council for the Borough of Slough held at the 
Chalvey Community Centre on Tuesday, 19th December, 2017 at 7.00 pm 

 
Present:-  The Worshipful the Mayor (Councillor Shah), in the chair; Councillors 

Ajaib, Anderson, Bains, Bal, Brooker, Carter, Cheema, Chohan, Coad, 
Dar, Davis, Amarpreet Dhaliwal, Arvind Dhaliwal, M Holledge, N Holledge, 
Hussain, Matloob, Nazir, Pantelic, Parmar, Plenty, Rana, Sadiq, 
A Sandhu, R Sandhu, Sarfraz, Sharif, Smith, Sohal, Strutton, 
Swindlehurst, Usmani and Wright. 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillors Bedi, Chahal, Chaudhry, Kelly, Mann, 
Qaseem and Rasib. 
 

42. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Bal declared that his daughter worked for Slough Borough Council. 
 

43. Councillors' Code of Conduct  
 
It was moved by Councillor Swindlehurst, 
Seconded by Councillor Hussain, 
 
“That the revised Councillors’ Code of Conduct, as attached at Appendix A to the 
report, be approved.” 
 
The recommendation was put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved – That the revised Councillors’ Code of Conduct, as attached at 
Appendix A to the report, be approved. 
 

44. Appointments to Committees, Panels and Outside Bodies  
 
It was moved by Councillor Swindlehurst, 
Seconded by Councillor Hussain, 
 
“ (a) That appointments be made to the vacancies on Committees in 

accordance with the nominations of political groups as set out in Appendix 
A of the report. 

 
  (b) That the appointments to casual vacancies on committees under 

Procedure Rules as at Appendix A of the report and as outlined at the 
meeting  - namely Councillor Arvind Dhaliwal’s appointment to the Audit 
and Corporate Governance Committee and Councillor Davis’ appointment 
to the Joint Parenting Panel be noted. 

 

Page 7



Council - 19.12.17 
  (c) That the appointments to outside bodies as at Appendix B of this report be 

approved. 
 
  (d) That the report of the Leader on the appointment of the Deputy Leader 

and Lead Members (the Cabinet) and their portfolios be received 
(Appendix C). 

 
  (e) That a Representative of the Slough Youth Parliament be appointed to the 

Slough Wellbeing Board and the Board’s Membership be updated 
accordingly.” 

 
The recommendations were put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved – 
 
(a) That appointments be made to the vacancies on Committees in accordance 

with the nominations of political groups as set out in Appendix A of the 
report. 

 
(b) That the appointments to casual vacancies on committees under Procedure 

Rules as at Appendix A of the report and as outlined at the meeting - namely 
Councillor Arvind Dhaliwal’s appointment to the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee and Councillor Davis’ appointment to the Joint 
Parenting Panel be noted. 

 
(c) That the appointments to outside bodies as at Appendix B of this report be 

approved. 
 
(d) That the report of the Leader on the appointment of the Deputy Leader and 

Lead Members (the Cabinet) and their portfolios be received (Appendix C). 
 
(e) That a Representative of the Slough Youth Parliament be appointed to the 

Slough Wellbeing Board and the Board’s Membership be updated 
accordingly. 

 
45. Designation of Monitoring Officer  

 
(The Service Lead, Governance left the meeting for the duration of the item) 
 
It was moved by Councillor Swindlehurst, 
Seconded by Councillor Hussain, 
 
“That Hugh Peart be designated as the Council’s Interim Monitoring Officer with 
effect from 1st January, 2018.” 
 
The recommendation was put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved – That Hugh Peart be designated as the Council’s Interim Monitoring 

Officer with effect from 1st January, 2018. 
 

46. Head of Paid Service and Chief Executive Arrangements  
 
It was moved by Councillor Swindlehurst, 

Page 8



Council - 19.12.17 
Seconded by Councillor Strutton, 
 
“ (a) That the temporary arrangement whereby Roger Parkin acts as interim 

Head of Paid Service ends on 31st December 2017; 
 
  (b) That the Director of Finance and Resources be authorised to make the 

appointment of an interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service from 
January 2018 following consultation with the Group Leaders and UKIP 
member; 

 
  (c) That the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD) carry 

out an independent review of the 2017 Chief Executive appointment 
process with the attached terms of reference.  Its report should inform the 
permanent recruitment to the Chief Executive post, and be published for 
information at the full Council meeting in January 2018; 

 
  (d) That the job description, person specification and terms and conditions of 

the Chief Executive and Head of the Paid Service post be endorsed as set 
out at Appendix B subject to the responsibility for probity and governance 
being emphasised and the post holder being appointed as the Council’s 
Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer; That the Service Lead 
(People) be authorised to make minor alterations as necessary following 
consultation with the Group Leaders and that the Service Lead (People) 
commence the recruitment to the permanent post of Slough’s Chief 
Executive; and 

 
  (e) That the Employment and Appeals Committee give consideration to the 

membership of the Appointments Sub-Committee, as detailed below, for 
the purposes of this appointment:  
‘In recognition of the significance of the position of the Chief Executive to 
the effective running of this Council, and in order to ensure that the 
appointment process for this position is inclusive of all political groups, the 
Employment and Appeals Committee appoint a Sub Committee 
comprising eight members to include the Leaders and Deputy Leaders of 
the Conservative and Labour Groups (or their nominees), Councillor Coad 
and the Chair of the Employment and Appeals Committee and two further 
Labour members.  Where possible, but not as a requirement, these 
nominations should be drawn from members serving on the Employment 
and Appeals Committee.  All members to be appointed as voting 
members and have received the appropriate training’.” 

 
Recommendation (a) was put to the vote and carried by 30 votes to 1 vote with 3 
abstentions. 
 
Recommendation (b) was put to the vote and carried by 32 votes to 0 votes with 
2 abstentions. 
 
Recommendation (c) was put to the vote and carried by 33 votes to 0 votes with 
1 abstention. 
 
Recommendation (d) was put to the vote and carried by 33 votes to 0 votes with 
1 abstention. 
 

Page 9



Council - 19.12.17 
Recommendation (e) was put to the vote and carried by 33 votes to 0 votes with 
1 abstention. 
 
Resolved – 
 
(a) That the temporary arrangement whereby Roger Parkin acts as interim Head 

of Paid Service ends on 31st December 2017; 
 

(b) That the Director of Finance and Resources be authorised to make the 
appointment of an interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service from 
January 2018 following consultation with the Group Leaders and UKIP 
member; 

 
(c) That the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD) carry out 

an independent review of the 2017 Chief Executive appointment process with 
the attached terms of reference.  Its report should inform the permanent 
recruitment to the Chief Executive post, and be published for information at 
the full Council meeting in January 2018; 

 
(d) That the job description, person specification and terms and conditions of the 

Chief Executive and Head of the Paid Service post be endorsed as set out at 
Appendix B subject to the responsibility for probity and governance being 
emphasised and the post holder being appointed as the Council’s Returning 
Officer and Electoral Registration Officer; That the Service Lead (People) be 
authorised to make minor alterations as necessary following consultation with 
the Group Leaders and that the Service Lead (People) commence the 
recruitment to the permanent post of Slough’s Chief Executive; and 

 
(e) That the Employment and Appeals Committee give consideration to the 

membership of the Appointments Sub-Committee, as detailed below, for the 
purposes of this appointment: 

 
‘In recognition of the significance of the position of the Chief Executive to the 
effective running of this Council, and in order to ensure that the appointment 
process for this position is inclusive of all political groups, the Employment 
and Appeals Committee appoint a Sub Committee comprising eight members 
to include the Leaders and Deputy Leaders of the Conservative and Labour 
Groups (or their nominees), Councillor Coad and the Chair of the 
Employment and Appeals Committee and two further Labour members.  
Where possible, but not as a requirement, these nominations should be 
drawn from members serving on the Employment and Appeals Committee.  
All members to be appointed as voting members and have received the 
appropriate training’. 

 
47. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 
It was moved by Councillor Swindlehurst, 
Seconded by Councillor Hussain, 
 
“That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as the 
item to be considered contains exempt information relating to individuals as 
defined in Paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended).” 

Page 10



Council - 19.12.17 
 
The recommendation was put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved – That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the 

meeting as the item to be considered contains exempt information 
relating to individuals as defined in Paragraph 1 of Part I of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 

 
Below is a summary of the matters considered during Part II of the agenda. 
 

48. Approval of Severance Payment to Interim Chief Executive  
 
A severance payment to the Interim Chief Executive, the costs of which were 
within the contractual and statutory entitlements, was approved. 
 
 

Chair 
 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 7.00 pm and closed at 7.45 pm) 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
 

At an Extraordinary Meeting of the Council for the Borough of Slough held at the 
Meeting Room 1, Chalvey Community Centre, The Green, Chalvey, Slough, SL1 2SP 
on Tuesday, 19th December, 2017 at 7.50 pm 

 
Present:-  The Worshipful the Mayor (Councillor Shah), in the chair; Councillors 

Ajaib, Anderson, Bains, Bal, Brooker, Carter, Cheema, Chohan, Coad, 
Dar, Davis, Amarpreet Dhaliwal, Arvind Dhaliwal, M Holledge, N Holledge, 
Hussain, Matloob, Nazir, Pantelic, Parmar, Plenty, Rana, Sadiq, 
A Sandhu, R Sandhu, Sarfraz, Sharif, Smith, Sohal, Strutton, 
Swindlehurst, Usmani and Wright. 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillors Bedi, Chahal, Chaudhry, Kelly, Mann, 
Qaseem and Rasib. 
 

49. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Bal declared that his daughter worked for Slough Borough Council. 
 

50. To Consider Motions Submitted regarding Governance and Postal Votes.  
 
Governance Motion 
 
It was moved Councillor Swindlehurst, 
Seconded by Councillor Strutton 
 
“This Council recognises that: 
 

• Good governance ensures we are doing the right things, in the right way, 
for the right people in pursuing our vision for Slough. 

• Good governance leads to good management, high standards of 
performance, efficient stewardship of public money and ultimately the right 
outcomes for our residents and service users 

• Good governance must include all members of the council- majority and 
opposition groups -and be embedded in the core operating functions of 
the Council and applied with the necessary transparency. 

 
Therefore this Council resolves to: 
 

• Tackle the significant governance issue facing the authority. 

• To ensure its governance arrangements are resilient, open, honest, 
inclusive and accountable. 

• Commission the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee to 
undertake a full review of the Council's governance arrangements.” 

 
The motion was put the vote and carried unanimously. 
 

Page 13



Council - 19.12.17 
 
Resolved – 
 
This Council recognises that: 
 

• Good governance ensures we are doing the right things, in the right way, 
for the right people in pursuing our vision for Slough. 

• Good governance leads to good management, high standards of 
performance, efficient stewardship of public money and ultimately the right 
outcomes for our residents and service users 

• Good governance must include all members of the council- majority and 
opposition groups -and be embedded in the core operating functions of 
the Council and applied with the necessary transparency. 

 
Therefore this Council resolves to: 
 

• Tackle the significant governance issue facing the authority. 

• To ensure its governance arrangements are resilient, open, honest, 
inclusive and accountable. 

• Commission the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee to 
undertake a full review of the Council's governance arrangements. 

 
Postal Votes Motion  
 
It was moved by Councillor Swindlehurst, 
Seconded by Councillor Bains, 
 
“This Council requests that the Returning Officer liaise with the Cabinet Office to 
design a brief for a pilot scheme to be trialled at the 2018 in local elections in 
Slough- with the pilot containing measures to strengthen the integrity of the 
postal vote system, help tackle fraud, and improve voter confidence.” 
 
The motion was put the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved – This Council requests that the Returning Officer liaise with the 

Cabinet Office to design a brief for a pilot scheme to be trialled at 
the 2018 in local elections in Slough- with the pilot containing 
measures to strengthen the integrity of the postal vote system, help 
tackle fraud, and improve voter confidence. 

 
 

Chair 
 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 7.50 pm and closed at 8.14 pm) 
 

Page 14



 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:                Council  DATE: 30th January 2018 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Nick Pontone, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
(For all enquiries)   (01753) 875120 

       
WARD(S): All 
 

PART I  
FOR DECISION 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CABINET FROM ITS MEETING HELD ON 22nd 
JANUARY 2018 
 
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT RENTS AND SERVICE CHARGES 2018-19 

 
1 Purpose of Report 
 

To consider the recommendations of the Cabinet from its meeting held on 22nd 
January 2018 in relation to the housing rents and service charges for 2018/19. 

 
2 Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 
 

The Council is requested to resolve:- 
 

(a) That Council house dwelling rents for 2018/19 decrease by 1% over the 2017/18 
rent with effect from Monday 2nd April 2018. This is in line with current 
government guidelines and legislation. 

 
(b) That Garage rents, heating, utility and ancillary charges increase by 3.0% with 

effect from Monday 2nd April 2018. This is based upon the September CPI figure.  
 

(c) That Service charges increase by 3.0% with effect from Monday 2nd April 2018. 
This is based upon the September CPI figure. 

  
(d) That ‘Other committee’ property rents increase by an average of 3.0% from 

Monday 2nd April 2018 in line with the September CPI figure. 
 
3. The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
3a.    Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities  

 
This report sets out the context and implications for the council over the setting of 
housing rents and service charges for the next four years and impact upon the local 
community. 

 
3b Five Year Plan Outcomes  
 

This report will primarily have implications for Outcome 4 in the delivery of future 
social and affordable homes by the council, and the maximisation of the rental 
stream and asset value to the HRA. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 15



 

 
4 Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  
 
The financial implications are contained within this report. 

 
(b) Risk Management  

 
If the Council follows Government guidance and legislation in the setting of its 
dwelling rents, then the risk to the Council will be mitigated. 

 

Risk Mitigating action Opportunities 

Legal n/a   

Property   

Human Rights   

Health and Safety   

Employment Issues n/a  

Equalities Issues   

Community Support   

Communications   

Community Safety   

Financial  Ensure that the Council 
sets a balanced HRA 
annual budget and matches 
the capital programme to 
the available resources. 

 

Timetable for delivery  Approval in January of the 
new rents will enable 
tenants to receive 
notification well within the 
statutory timescales. 

Project Capacity   

Other   

 
(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 
There are no Human Rights Act Implications. 
 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment  
 
There is no identified need for the completion of an EIA. 

 
5 Supporting Information 
 
Background 
 
5.1 For the 10 years prior to 2015/16, the setting of Council social rents has been guided 

by the Government policy called rent convergence, the intention of which was to 
bring parity to Council social rents across the country, and reduce the ‘gap’ between 
Council social rents and Housing Association rents. 

Page 16



 

 
5.2 Driving these annual rent charges was a Government prescribed formula which 

linked the following year’s rent changes to the previous September’s RPI and was 
weighted for regional differences e.g. salaries and house prices. 

 
5.3 However, in the summer budget on the 8th July 2015, the Chancellor announced that 

“rents paid in the social housing sector will not be frozen, but reduced by 1% a year 
for the next four years”. In previous years, the Government has always allowed 
Councils ‘discretion’ in changing their rents but produced a rent policy to guide 
Councils in the setting of their rents. Slough Borough Council has followed 
Government ‘rent policy’ and set its rents in line with that policy. 

 
5.4 The Government has now departed from the previous practice of issuing rent 

‘guidance’ to setting social rents across the country through primary legislation. 
Section 23 (1) of The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 states that:- 

 
In relation to each relevant year, registered providers of social housing must secure that the amount 
of rent payable in a relevant year by a tenant of their social housing in England is 1% less than the 
amount that was payable by the tenant in the preceding 12 months. 

 
5.5 Section 23 (6) then goes on to define the relevant applicable years as a year 

beginning on the 1 April 2016, 1 April 2017, 1 April 2018 or 1 April 2019. 
 
5.6 The Act does allow exemptions from this rent reduction to be granted by the 

Secretary of State but these are very limited and clearly specified and cover 
properties such as specialist supported housing, temporary social housing, care 
homes and nursing homes. One of those exemptions (section 25(10)) is if the SoS 
considers that the local authority would be unable to avoid serious financial difficulties 
if it were to comply with the 1% rent reductions. 

 
In effect, this means that for 2018/19, the Council will again need to set its social 
rents (HRA) 1% lower than the rents current in this year. 

 
Impact 
 
5.7 The HRA 30 Year financial Business plan has been updated to reflect the 

introduction of the 1% decrease this year and the next two years. The impact on this 
year is an estimated reduction of £0.3m over last year’s rental income of £32.8m. 

 
5.8 The estimated average weekly rent for the current year is now £102.78 and the 

Government proposals will produce an estimated loss in potential rental income of 
£0.9m and an average decrease of 2.0% in weekly rent over the next two years as 
measured against this year’s rental income; this roughly equates to the loss of 3 new 
social properties. Over a ten year period, the cumulative estimated loss of rental 
income could be £38m if rents had been allowed to increase by CPI plus 1%. The 
year by year future impact is shown in the table below:- 

 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Average weekly rent £102.78 £101.75 £100.74 

Annual loss of Rent Income £1.6m £2.6m £3.6m 

 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

Next Four Years  
 
5.9 The rent decrease will apply this year and for the next two years. On the 4th October 

2017, the Government announced that from 2020, social housing rents would be 
limited to CPI plus 1% for the following five years. This has now been assumed in the 
HRA 30 year Financial Business Plan with just CPI for the remaining years (CPI has 
been assumed to be 1%).The new RMI contract with Osbornes commenced on the 
1st December 2017, and together with the recent stock survey and the options 
appraisal, this will also feed into the future HRA Financial Business Plan.  

 
5.10 The other changes likely to impact on the HRA and the Council’s tenants in the next 

few years are:- 
 
5.10.1 Universal Credit 

 
The full UC service is expected to be rolled out in Slough from April 2018 and will 
affect all new claims from working age customers with less than three children e.g. 
unemployed, sick, disabled, carers, lone parents, foster carers plus change of 
circumstances; certain client groups e.g. over 65s, supported housing, will be 
exempt. The financial impact on the HRA for 2018/19 is difficult to estimate but the 
budgeted rental income collection rate will be revised downwards and the bad debts 
provision increased in anticipation of the switch to monthly payments, the longer 
processing time, and the merging of HB with several other benefits into one 
payment. The HRA Financial Business Plan will be reviewed on a regular basis as 
the full impact of Universal Credit becomes clearer.   

 
5.10.2 Sale of High Value Council Houses 
 

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 introduced a “Duty to consider selling vacant 
higher value housing” and Section 76 (1) states that “A local housing authority in 
England that keeps a Housing Revenue Account must consider selling its interest in 
any higher value housing that has become vacant.” This is linked to the proposed 
introduction of ‘right to buy’ for Housing Association tenants and is intended to 
‘compensate’ Housing Associations for the loss of their stock through RTB.  
 
Since the statement of the previous Housing Minister (Gavin Barwell) in November 
2016 that a ‘decision hadn’t yet been taken on the timing and the policy would 
require “quite a notice period” before being introduced’, followed by a further 
statement that the government would not be requesting any high-value asset 
payments from Local Authorities during 2017/18, there has been no indication of 
when, or whether, this proposed policy might be introduced. 
 

6 Comments of Other Committees 
 

6.1 The Housing rents and service charges 2018/19 were considered by the 
Neighbourhoods and Communities Services Scrutiny Panel on 16th January 2018. 

 
6.2 The Cabinet will consider the matters detailed in this report at its meeting on 22nd 

January 2018.  Any amendments to the recommendations will be reported to 
Council. 

 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

7 Conclusion 
 

The Council is requested to approve the housing rents and service charges for 
2018/19.  

 
8 Background Papers 
 

‘1’ Welfare and Reform Act 2016 
‘2’ Housing and Planning Act 2016 
 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:                Council     DATE: 30th January 2018 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Surjit Nagra, Service Lead – People 
 (01753) 875727 
 
WARDS: All 
 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 
APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE and HEAD OF PAID SERVICE  

 
1 Purpose of Report 
 

This report seeks agreement to the appointment of an interim to the vacant post of 
Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service. 
 

2 Recommendation 
 

The Council is requested to resolve that Adam Wilkinson be appointed as the 
Council’s Interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service with effect from 19th 
February 2018 for a period of six months. 

 
3 Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities 
 

The Head of Paid Service along with the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 
Officer combine to form the Council’s Statutory Officer functions.  These roles are key 
to ensuring lawfulness, fairness, probity and general good governance that support 
the council in achieving its aims.  It is important that they work effectively together yet 
maintain appropriate independence and that the roles are undertaken by adequately 
skilled and experienced staff supported by appropriate resources. 

 
4 Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  
 

None. 
 

(b) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 

The appointment of a Head of Paid Service is a statutory requirement under 
Section 5, Local Government & Housing Act 1989. The Council has the power to 
designate and appoint the Head of Paid Service. 
 

5 Supporting Information 
 
5.1 At its meeting on 19 December 2017, the Council resolved that the Director of 

Finance and Resources be authorised to prepare a recommendation for the 
appointment of an interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service following 
consultation with the Group Leaders and UKIP member.   

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 21



 

5.2 The Council’s Head of Paid Service has a number of functions which are defined 
within the Council’s constitution.  

 

• Overall corporate management and operational responsibility (including overall 
management responsibility for all officers). 

• Provision of professional advice to all parties in the decision making process. 

• Together with the Monitoring Officer, responsibility for a system of record 
keeping for all the Council’s decisions. 

• Representing the Council on partnership and external bodies (as required by 
statute or the Council). 

• Policy & Communications 

• Professional Services 
 

5.3 Following a recruitment and selection process which consisted of the following: 
 

• Establishing two interview panels – one panel consisting of Members 
(comprising of the Leader, Deputy Leader, Conservative Group Leader and 
former UKIP member) and the second consisting of all the Directors; 

• Engaging with recruitment agencies who specialised in interim chief executive 
searches; 

• Both panels independently shortlisting CV’s received from the recruitment 
agencies; and  

• Both panels interviewing shortlisted candidates 
 
A decision was made to recommend to Council the appointment of Adam Wilkinson 
as an interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service. Please see Appendix 1 for 
Mr Wilkinson’s CV which highlights his experience to date. 

 
5.4 The Council is committed to appointing permanent officers to the statutory officer 

roles but pending a permanent appointment a temporary appointment is necessary. 
 
6 Conclusion 
 

The role of the Head of Paid Service is an important element in the Council’s 
structure and processes.  The arrangements outlined in this report will ensure that 
the functions continue to be discharged appropriately until a permanent member of 
staff is appointed. 

 
7 Appendices  
 

Appendix 1 – Mr Adam Wilkinson CV. 
 

8. Background Papers  
 
 None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Profile  –  Adam Wilkinson 
 
Skills, Knowledge & Experience 
 
I have worked in the Public sector for over 34 years, as a Chief Officer for 15 years and have 
considerable experience and a successful track record in leading, managing and operating within 
large and complex organisations. 
 
Developed particular experience and expertise with: 
 

• helping organisations formulate and deliver ambitious strategic outcomes for their place 

and people   

• managing & delivering large scale and wide ranging services. 

• directly managing critical & complex projects, from internal transformation to major/complex 

regeneration & infrastructure projects/programmes. 

• managing key relationships with stakeholder groups, local/national politicians/civil servants 

& partners. 

• working effectively at all levels within Senior Management teams 

 
Personal Qualities and Style 
 
Chief Officer working in the Public Sector for over 34 years, gained considerable knowledge and 
understanding of the social and economic issues that impact on communities.  
 
Good knowledge of organisations working at national, regional and sub-regional level and the 
considerable importance of collaborative partnership working to deliver effective change and 
improvement for people and places. 
 
Able to work under considerable pressure, resilient and effectively leads and drives change when 
necessary. Committed to equality of opportunity, with strong ethical standards and leads by 
example, through a collaborative and inspirational style of management. 
 
Developed outstanding public speaking and general communication skills through the various roles 
fulfilled, from presenting organisational priorities at staff conferences to presenting development 
opportunities to global investors 

 
Employment History  
 
Public Sector Roles and Assignments  
 
Interim Director of Regulatory & Technical Services - Newry, Mourne and Down Council 
(Northern Ireland)  June 2017 to Present  
 
Interim Director responsible for the services of Planning, Building Control, Facilities & Asset 
Management, Grounds maintenance, cleansing and Waste Management. Introducing new ways of 
working, bringing together two legacy Council functions, producing policy’s, procedures, structures 
and assisting with Corporate transformation within a complex and challenging political setting. 

 
Interim Managing Director - Bexley Co Ltd/London Borough of Bexley  
 
Fulfilled the Interim MD role from 3 July 2017 to 31 October 2017, responsible for setting up the 
Council’s arms length investment &  development Company, designed to both help regenerate 

Page 23



 

Bexley and to produce revenue streams to the Council, with an initial £160m worth of 
developments rising to assets worth around £0.5billion. 
 
Interim Head of Paid Service - North East Combined Authority 
 
Fulfilled the Interim Head of Paid Service role from June 2015 to July 2016. Worked with the seven 
local authorities of Durham County Council, Gateshead Council, Newcastle City Council, North 
Tyneside Council, Northumberland County Council, South Tyneside Council and Sunderland City 
Council, who established the North East Combined Authority (NECA) in 2014. 
 
Fulfilled the role of Interim Head of Paid Service responsible for 
delivering a large number of objectives and outcomes, as agreed by the Combined Authority 
Leaders Board :- 

 

•  Designed and appointed the NECA team and Devolution team, consisting of Interims, 

secondments and permanent staff members & produced policies, procedures and systems 

to ensure effective governance & efficiency. 

•  Managed the delivery of services from the Metro Rail system to significant regeneration 

including housing schemes and an overall budget of £250million per annum. 

•  Initially supported then led the process in reaching initial agreement on a Devolution Deal 

between the Government and the Mayoral/Combined Authority, working with the 7 LA 

Leaders & CEO’s, Government officials & Ministers, Business leaders and the LEP. 

•  Significantly improved relationships with the Business Community such as the NE CBi, 

Chamber of Commerce, FSB, EEF and so on through direct and regular open and honest 

engagement and sensitively facilitated a refresh of the Local Enterprise Partnership 

(NELEP), with the election of a new Chair, board Members and working with the Chief 

Operating Officer to merge the two teams of NECA and NELEP. 

 
Interim Director - Neighbourhood Services - York City Council 
 
From January 2009 to July 2009, responsible for the Council’s Commercial services functions, 
including Highways, Waste, Environmental Health, Trading Standards, Building Maintenance, 
Community Safety and Neighbourhood Management. Restructured the Directorate to provider 
greater levels of customer satisfaction, more efficient working practices and a general 
modernisation of Neighbourhood management. 

 
Member of the Corporate management team and assisted in the development of a new Corporate 
strategy and the Council transformation programme. Was also the Council’s lead officer on 
Member Development and data management. 

 
Permanent Roles 
 
Chief Executive - Derby City Council - July 2009 to December 2014              
 

• Responsible for a large Unitary City Council, serving a population of 250,000 people and 

employing 9000 staff, worked with 4 different Political Administrations and 5 Leaders (LD, 

Cons, Cons/LD, then Labour) achieving :- 

• Development and implementation of Derby’s Community Strategy, Derby City Council’s 

City Plan(s) and numerous strategic plans associated with improving Social and Economic 

outcomes for the communities and businesses of Derby. 

• Balanced budgets and £96m of savings with £32m in efficiency savings 

• Improved performance and increased customer satisfaction in Council services despite 

significant cuts and losing over 1200 members of staff in the previous four years. 

Page 24



 

• Delivery of £600m Capital Programme supporting service improvements, infrastructure, 

Housing and regeneration, including delivery of Derby’s Arena, a multi-use sports Arena 

and Velodrome. 

 
Directly designed, led and managed the delivery of the Council's Accommodation Strategy – 

including a £35m refurbishment and extension of the Council House allowing 3000 staff to 

be based in the building compared to just 500 in 2011. 

 

Directly designed, managed and led a council-wide transformation programme, (one derby 

one council – ODOC) introducing comprehensive flexible working, significant customer 

channel shift and a new target operating model. 

 

• Directly developed and delivered the Streetpride service, a one stop Neighbourhood and 

Environmental service, bringing together all blue and white collar services, contracted as 

well as traded services, associated with the City’s street scene. 

• Directly created a City Regeneration Fund and a City Living Fund – which was extremely 

successful, highly flexible and highly responsive investment fund designed to promote the 

regeneration of the city bringing new jobs, new and retained businesses, the regeneration 

of derelict buildings and significant  housing development.  

• Established a partnership with Aston, Cranfield and Derby Universities to offer supply chain 

services to over 50 transport engineering companies (as part of the Planes, Trains and 

Automobiles Strategy) 

• Conceived, designed and chaired Public/private joint venture partnership delivering a 250 

acre manufacturing and technology park – Infinity Park Derby (IPD), Derby’s flagship long 

term employment initiative. 

 
Achieved the Equality Framework for Local Government (Excellent category) and the 

Stonewall Top 100 Employers.  

• Won the Business Transformation Award at the LGC Awards in 2013, 

• the Children’s Services Award at the MJ Awards in 2013, 

• the Public /Private Partnership Award at MJ Awards in 2013, 

• the Efficiency Award at the LGC Awards in 2014, 

• the Workforce Transformation Award at the MJ Awards 2014 

• the LGC & MJ Management Team of the Year awards in 2012 & 2014  

• Finalists for Council of the Year at the LGC Awards in 2013 and 2014.                                                        

 
Additional roles 

• Lead peer reviewer for the Local Government Association and led on reviews of North East 

Lincolnshire Council, Bolsover District Council, North East Derbyshire District Council and 

Brighton and Hove City Council. 

• Judge for the Local Government Chronicle and Municipal Journal Awards. 

• Set up the Key Cities Group with Derby City Council being a founding and lead member– 

formed to achieve national lobbying to Government and to learn from and support each 

other. 

 
Managing Director of Environment and Regeneration with Kent County Council - September 
2007 to October 2008 
 
Responsible for over 2,000 employees and accountable for a revenue budget of over £200 million 
and approximately £111 million of capital investment.  In 2007/2008, directorate generated £72 
million external funding and income. 
 

Page 25



 

Corporate lead for Social, Economic and Environmental Regeneration, Spatial Planning, Kent 
Highway service, Transport, Waste Management and the Kent Growth Areas programme (Thames 
Gateway and Ashford) and provided lead officer support to the Council’s Regeneration Board.   
 
Strategic Director of Environment and Development - Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council - 2002 to 2007 
 
Directorate employed 2,500 people and managed a £150 million Revenue Budget, a £300 million 
Capital Programme and a £1 billion Regeneration Programme. 
 
The Directorate provided the Council’s Commercial/Traded Services, such as Highways, Building 
Maintenance, Grounds maintenance, Transport, Leisure & Culture as well as Regeneration 
(RiDO), Planning, Building Control, Asset Management, Rotherham Construction Partnership, 
Customer Services Strategy and the Town Centre Urban Renaissance programme. Also lead 
officer support to the Council’s Regeneration Board and Property Board. 
 
Fulfilled the Deputy Chief Executive role, representing the Council on a number of Local and 
Regional Boards including the Chamber of Commerce, the Local Strategic Partnership, 
Renaissance South Yorkshire Ltd (Company Director Public/Private partnership), South Yorkshire 
Coalfields Partnership and so on. 
 
From 2003 to 2007 the directorate achieved a number of positive outcomes :- 
 

• Major schemes of inward investment were negotiated and delivered, valued at nearly £1bn.  

• A Rotherham regeneration master plan produced via a town team – through an urban 

renaissance programme and implementation with £350 million of development including the 

Advanced Manufacturing Park (AMP) - Project Lead 

• Investors in People Award, ISO 9001 (Quality Management), ISO 14001 (Environmental 

Management) EMAS certification, five Charter Mark Awards and a number of professional 

body awards eg RIBA, RICS and ICE for particular developments. 

• Local Government Chronicle Award for ‘Environment’ in 2005 for Rotherham Streetpride 

and for ‘Regeneration’ in 2007. 

• Seven Beacon Council Awards for: Fostering Business Growth, Removing Barriers to 

Work, Asset Management, Supporting New Businesses, Delivery of Quality Services 

through Procurement, Emergency Planning and Better Public Places. 

 
Career in Local Government  
   

• Company Director, Adam Wilkinson Consultancy Ltd, 2014 to Present 

• Chief Executive, Derby City Council, 2009 to 2014 

• Managing Director, Kent County Council, 2007 to 2008 

• Strategic Director, Rotherham Metropolitan Council, 2002 to 2007 

• Head of Service, Kirklees Metropolitan Council, 1998 to 2002 

• Assistant Director, Torfaen County Borough Council,1996 to 1998 

• Assistant Director, South Bucks District Council, 1991 to 1996 

• Principal Surveyor, London Borough of Camden, 1987 to 1991 

• Building Surveyor, London Borough of Barnet, 1986 to 1987 

• Assistant Surveyor, London Borough of Redbridge, 1985 to 1986 

• Trainee Surveyor, Wycombe District Council, 1983 to 1985 

 
*  Interim Director/MD/Head of Paid Service roles 2008 – 2009 & 2014 - Present 

 
 

Page 26



 

Qualifications 
 

• University of Wales College, Master Degree in Business Administration,  MBA,  1999 

• University of Wales College, Post Graduate Diploma in Business Administration, DBA, 

1997 

• South Bank University, Degree in Construction Management, BSc, 1990 

• Thames Valley University, HNC in Building Studies, HNC, 1985 

    
Professional Qualifications 
 

• President, Chartered Association of Building Engineers, PPBEng, 2002-2003 

• Fellow Member, Chartered Institute of Building, FCIOB, 1990-2005 

• Fellow Member, Chartered Association of Building Engineers, FBEng, 1994-2005 

• Fellow Member, Royal Society of Art, FRSA, 2000-2003 

 
 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:                Council     DATE: 30th January 2018 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Surjit Nagra, Service Lead - People 
(For all enquiries)   (01753) 875727 

       
WARD(S): All 
 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 
APPOINTMENT PROCESS FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE (HEAD OF PAID SERVICE)  

 
1 Purpose of Report 
 

The purpose of this report is to 
 

• outline the outcome of the independent review carried out by the Chartered 
Institute of Personnel Development (CIPD) of the 2017 Chief Executive 
appointment process; 

• seek approval to commence the process permanently to appoint to the role of 
the Chief Executive (which includes appointing an external recruitment agency 
who will  produce the advert/ microsite); and 

• seek approval to the job description, person specification and terms and 
conditions for  the role of Chief Executive at Slough 
Borough Council and sets out the process to be followed in line with the 
Council’s Constitution and Recruitment Policy. 

 
2 Recommendation 
 

The Council is requested to resolve  
 

(a) That the outcome of the independent review conducted by the CIPD attached 
at Appendix1 be noted; 
 

(b) That the job description, person specification, terms and conditions (as 
attached at Appendices) as set out at Appendix 2 and 3 be approved; and 

 
(c) That the appointment process set out in paragraph 5.7 be noted. 

 
3 Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities 
 

There are no implications for the Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the 
Five Year Plan. However, the Chief Executive is expected to drive forward the 
organisational changes reflected in the Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA 
and the Five Year Plan and will therefore need to have strong and effective 
leadership, with both the skills and commitment to deliver the required outcomes. 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 29



 

4 Other Implications 
 
(a) Financial  
 

None. 
 

(b) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 
There are no Human Rights Act or other legal implications. 
 
(c) Equalities Impact Assessment 

 
There is no identified need for the completion of an EIA  

 
5 Supporting Information 
 

Independent Review 
 

5.1 At its meeting on 19th December 2017 the Council resolved that the Chartered 
Institute of Personnel Management (CIPD) carry out an independent review of the 
2017 Chief Executive Appointment process. It was requested that the report from the 
review should inform the permanent recruitment to the Chief Executive post, and be 
published for information at this meeting.  
 

5.2 The report is attached for information and has confirmed that the process conducted 
was standard  practice in recruiting such a senior post in an organisation. There are 
no recommendations that have been made in terms of what could be changed.  
 

5.3 Members had raised concerns during the previous recruitment process that the 
subcommittee had not been appropriately trained.  Members should be aware that  
all members received recruitment and selection training which included: 
understanding the Council’s recruitment process, selecting appropriate assessment 
methods, shortlisting fairly, planning questions based on the person specifications, 
competencies and understanding the interview process.  
 

Appointment process 
 

5.4 At its meeting on 19th December 2017 the Council recommended to the Employment 
and Appeals Committee that:  
 
 ‘In recognition of the significance of the position of the Chief Executive to the 
effective running of this Council, and in order to ensure that the appointment 
process of this position is inclusive of all political groups, the Employment and 
Appeals Committee appoint a Sub Committee comprising eight members to include 
the Leaders and Deputy Leaders of the Conservative and Labour Groups (or their 
nominees), Councillor Coad and the Chair of the Employment and Appeals 
Committee and two further Labour members.  Where possible, but not as a 
requirement, these nominations should be drawn from members serving on the 
Employment and Appeals Committee.  All members to be appointed as voting 
members and have received the appropriate training’. 
 

5.5 The Employment and Appeals Committee is meeting on 25th January 2018 to 
consider this recommendation and appoint the Appointments Sub Committee.  
 

Page 30



 

5.6 It was further agreed at the meeting of the 19th December that the job description 
should be reviewed and minor amendments be made to this following consultation 
with the Group Leaders The job description has been reviewed and is attached as 
Appendix 2. For ease of reference the changes are reflected in italics.  
 

The draft documents (job description, person specification and the main conditions of 
service) that will make up the recruitment pack that will be used for the 
recruitment process are attached at Appendices 2 and 3. The Constitution requires 
these documents to be approved by the Council. 
 

5.7  Following the approval of these documents the recruitment process will be initiated 
in line with the Council’s Recruitment and Selection Policy and Procedure agreed in 
October 2016. Due to the seniority of this post it will be advertised externally and the 
Service Lead – People will source an external recruitment agency to support the 
process.  
 

5.8 The selection process will include a panel of key stakeholders / external partners, a  
panel  of employees, and a formal interview with the Appointments Sub committee 
with a formal presentation, psychometric tests and an in tray exercise.  

 
6 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1  CIPD Report 
Appendix 2 Job Description and person specification 
Appendix 3 Main Conditions of Service 

 
7 Background Papers  
 
 None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

151 The Broadway London SW19 1JQ United Kingdom                           CIPD Enterprises Limited                             
T +44 (0)20 8612 6200 F +44 (0)20 8612 6201                                         Registered office as stated   
E cipd@cipd.co.uk   W www.cipd.co.uk                                                     Registered in England and Wales (2921009) 

 

For the attention of Slough Borough Council  

18th January 2018 

 

Prepared by Jackie Alexander LL.B, Chartered FCIPD 

 

  

 Review of the CEO 

recruitment process  

Page 33



 

 

 

151 The Broadway London SW19 1JQ United Kingdom                           CIPD Enterprises Limited                             
T +44 (0)20 8612 6200 F +44 (0)20 8612 6201                                         Registered office as stated   
E cipd@cipd.co.uk   W www.cipd.co.uk                                                     Registered in England and Wales (2921009) 

Review of the CEO recruitment process for Slough Borough Council  

Introduction  

This report has been commissioned by Surjit Nagra on behalf of Slough Borough Council. 

CIPD were asked to review the most recent recruitment process for the CEO. We have 

provided an overview of the key principles underpinning standard CEO recruitment and 

reviewed the process recommended by Penna.  

Important to note: As a professional institute, while we can help with advice and training on 

HR practices, we do not comment on how these are specifically carried out nor on the quality 

of decision making that arises from these processes  in this case, the hiring of your CEO.  

Standard practice for senior level recruitment  

It is standard practice for senior level recruitment to use a third party consultancy. This is a 

combined activity between the consultancy and the employer - with the consultancy 

recommending process and the employer choosing which elements to change to suit their 

internal culture.    

The process begins once a consultancy has been chosen, some organisations will do this by 

competitive tender, others by going directly to a consultancy that they have used before. Key 

to this is the consultancy's knowledge of the specific market and awareness of current 

trends.  

It is the employer who usually produces the job pack to go to candidates and identifies core 

competencies but the method of candidate attraction will be jointly decided with advice from 

the consultancy based on market research. Often an employer will require a microsite to be 

developed and in this case the consultancy will do the work.  

It is standard for a consultancy to handle all enquiries from prospective candidates and take 

in and acknowledge applications. The consultancy will have agreed timescales and the 

screening criteria/competencies with the employer. After the closing date they will evaluate 

applications against these criteria and produce the long-list of candidates to be considered. 

They will also have agreed the rating terminology for candidates on this list and throughout 

the process.  

In setting up the process there are a considerable range of activities that can be used to 

evaluate candidates and these can include personality and psychometric testing. There are 

a large number of test providers and ultimately it is the consultancy that advises, and the 

employer who chooses, which to use and at what stage in the process.  

Similarly interview structure and the number of interviews will depend upon the employer 

culture. There can be screening interviews carried out by the consultancy in person or by 

phone, a varying number of employer interviews either one to one or by panels and 

assessment days managed by the consultancy. The consultancy will provide advice on this 

and, once the employer decides how they want to proceed, will manage the process, 

providing written guidance.  

Page 34



 

 

 

151 The Broadway London SW19 1JQ United Kingdom                           CIPD Enterprises Limited                             
T +44 (0)20 8612 6200 F +44 (0)20 8612 6201                                         Registered office as stated   
E cipd@cipd.co.uk   W www.cipd.co.uk                                                     Registered in England and Wales (2921009) 

Standard practice is for the consultancy to provide full written reports on who to take forward 

at each stage of the process - both comparative and on individual candidates. These will be 

discussed with the employer. The reports will contain recommendations and it is the 

employer who decides whether to accept them or not.  

Any interview panels should receive training either from the consultancy or internally. Often 

the consultancy will provide questions for the panels. At interview the employer can ask the 

consultancy to take notes or provide an internal resource to do so.  

At all stages the consultancy will manage the candidates, either rejecting them or taking 

them through to the next stage and ultimately to referencing and negotiating the offer. 

 

 

Please note: In the first discussion with Slough Borough Council about this work, I was 
made aware that Penna advised on the recruitment process. I declared that I had worked 
with Penna in the past, in previous roles. As I had never worked with the Penna Consultant 
Julie Towers who advised the Council, it was confirmed by Belinda Colins that there was no 
conflict of interest. 

In conducting this review, I have spoken to Belinda Collins for an initial briefing and Surjit 

Nagra, both employees of Slough Borough Council. I have 

received relevant documentation and spoken to Julie Towers from Penna, the consultant 

responsible for the recruitment exercise. All discussions have been over the phone. 

I have also reviewed a number of documents pertaining to the recruitment process (as 

referenced below).  

I comment as follows: 

1. The invitation to quote from Slough Borough Council and the tender response from 
Penna. I cannot comment on this part of the exercise, as I am not a procurement 
specialist. 

2. Papers written by Surjit Nagra to the Council dated: 
a. 31st January 2017 asking for approval of the job description and advertisement 
b. 31st January 2017 outlining the process to be followed 
c. 20th and 26th June 2017 relating to the appointment of the various committees 

that were involved in the process. 
These papers follow a standard Council format and the content is clear. 

3. The Council Recruitment and Selection Policy:  this is a clear document 
4. The Penna documentation: 

a. The Job Pack provided by the Council: Julie Towers told me that Penna 
managed the development of the micro site which was used to attract candidates 
and also candidate enquiries.  

b. The longlist pack dated 31st August 2017 and meeting details. 
c. Watson Glaser Critical Thinking test results. Watson Glaser is a well-known test 

supplier. 
5. Technical interview reports by Penna  

Page 35



 

 

 

151 The Broadway London SW19 1JQ United Kingdom                           CIPD Enterprises Limited                             
T +44 (0)20 8612 6200 F +44 (0)20 8612 6201                                         Registered office as stated   
E cipd@cipd.co.uk   W www.cipd.co.uk                                                     Registered in England and Wales (2921009) 

a. Penna briefing papers for panels. Panel training was carried out internally by the 
Council and has not been reviewed. 

b. Initial interview questions for panels and notes taken at the interviews 
c. Interview and assessment reports on individual candidates 
d. Shortlist reports 
e. Final interview timetable 

 

Conclusion  

My conclusion is that the Penna process is a standard process for this level of recruitment 

and all reports are written in a clear fashion.   

 

About Jackie Alexander  

Jackie Alexander is a Chartered Fellow of the CIPD and a solicitor. She is an HR consultant, 

coach and trainer. Jackie has held a number of senior HR positions, namely Managing 

Director Resources LCH. Clearnet, a leading Clearing House; Recruitment Partner 

PricewaterhouseCoopers, HR Director BBC Worldwide, interim HR Director at the Royal 

Automobile Club. She started her career at British Airways and then worked in local authority 

and the NHS. Jackie is a Chair on Nursing and Midwifery Council fitness to practice 

hearings; chairs CIPD investigations and until December 2014 was a member of the General 

Dental Council Appointments Committee.  

 

Training, education and qualifications 

LL.B Southampton University 

Solicitor  

Chartered Fellow, Institute of Personnel and Development  

British Psychological Society, Certificate of Competence in Occupational Testing  

Accredited AOEC coach 

 

 

Page 36



        APPENDIX 2 
 
 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
 
JOB TITLE:  CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
RESPONSIBLE TO:   The council, through the leader of the council 
 
RESPONSIBLE FOR:  Strategic management  
 
    Leadership including responsibilities as head of paid services  
 
    Partnership and community development  
 
    Resource management  
  
    Working with members  
 
    Equality and diversity 
 
 
MAIN PURPOSE OF JOB:  
 

• To provide leadership in the strategic management of the council and to support 
Members with the objective of achieving its vision, priorities, aims and ambition for 
Slough 
 

• To be the head of paid service and ensure that the council is organised efficiently and 
effectively to deliver excellent customer focused services.  

 

• To enhance and be the guardian of the reputation of the Council with residents, 
businesses and other stakeholders 
 

• To act as the Returning Officer and the Electoral Registration Officer 
 
 
MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES:  
 
Strategic management  
 
1. To ensure that the council’s vision, priorities and aims are made a reality by providing 

a clear sense of direction, optimism and purpose and by marshalling the resources of 
the whole organisation to achieve these ends.  

Page 37



 
2. To be the council’s principal adviser on corporate strategy by setting a clear framework 

for the development and achievement of corporate policies and objectives and through 
working effectively with members through the council’s democratic structure. 
 

3. To ensure effective governance, safeguarding the Councils financial and statutory 
duties and ensuring proper public accountability 

 
Leadership  
 
4. To be the head of paid service and to lead the corporate management team so that 

positive contributions are made by directors in the development and implementation of 
policies that will optimise service delivery to the people of Slough. 
 

5. To inspire, empower and develop the council’s workforce to secure a real sense of 
ownership of its vision and priorities, seek continuous improvement, encourage cross-
council working and move decision making and responsibilities as close as possible to 
the point of service delivery. 

 
6. To develop and maintain a flexible and focused organisation which is able to embrace, 

absorb and respond positively to changing requirements and priorities. 
 
Partnership and community development  
 
7. To lead the council’s commitment to working with a range of stakeholders with the aim 

of maximising positive and sustainable external  investment in the town centre and 
other initiatives.  
 

8. To develop and maintain effective systems of consultation, community involvement 
and partnership working to achieve the council’s community strategy.  
 

9. To promote the interests and image of the council and enhance its influence in 
constructive relationships with key stakeholders in the community, in government and 
other public bodies, the voluntary sector and in the business community.  

 
Resource management  
 
10. To ensure that effective organisational structures and performance management 

systems are in place to plan, delivery and monitor strategic and service objectives. 
 

11. To plan and keep under review the council’s budget strategy and other significant 
financial funding arrangements in line with the priorities agreed by the council; to 
ensure that budgets are monitored and controlled and that there is clear accountability.  

 
Working with members  
 
12. To have overall responsibility for the management of relationships between elected 

member, political groups and officers by establishing a clear understand of roles and 

Page 38



by developing and maintain clearly understood procedures for converting policies into 
action within the constraints of propriety and legality.  
 

13. To provide the leadership, communication and action will exemplify the council’s 
values and commitment to value diversity, ensure equality of opportunity and 
strengthen cohesion in the community. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
 
 

Person Specification 
 
 
 Description  Essential/ 

Desirable  

Method 
Application 
Interview, 
Test 

Experience 

1.1  
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
1.5 
 
 
 
1.6 
 
 
1.7 

Significant experience as a senior director or as a 
Chief Executive in local government or similar 
public sector organisation with a track record of 
success as a senior  
manager  
 
Successful corporate leadership with significant 
track record in strategic planning and 
performance management leading improved 
outcomes for local people  
 
Successful working with elected members or 
stakeholder and in building relationships of trust  
 
A track record of achievement in partnership 
working with a wide range of stakeholders  
 
Establishing effective relationships with 
multicultural communities and in dealing 
confidently with diversity issues  
 
Successfully leading organisational change to 
achieve major improvements  
 
Success in financial, people and resource 
management of a significant scale and complexity 

Essential 
 
 
 
 

 
Essential 

 
 
 
 

Essential 
 

 
Essential 

 
 

Essential 
 
 
 

Essential 
 
 

Essential 

ü 
 
 
 
 
 
ü 
 
 
 
 
ü 
 
 
ü 
 
 
ü 
 
 
 
ü 
 
 
ü 

 
 

A/I 
 
 
 
 
 

A/I 
 
 
 
 

A/I 
 
 

A/I 
 
 

A/I 
 
 
 

A/I 
 
 

A/I 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 

A clear understanding of the major challenges in 
local government and of the current social policy 
issues to be faced in a multicultural urban 
environment  
 
Strategic planning and performance management 
systems including external inspections  
 
Legislative and financial frameworks within which 
local authorities operate  
 
High level of understanding and commitment to 

Essential 
 
 
 
 

Essential 
 
 

Essential 
 
 

Essential 

ü 
 
 
 
 

ü 
 
 
 

ü 
 

ü 
 

I/T 
 
 
 
 

I/T 
 
 
 
I 

 
I/T 

Page 40



 Description  Essential/ 
Desirable  

Method 
Application 
Interview, 
Test 

diversity issues.  
 
 

Knowledge 

3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 
3.8 
 
 
3.9 
 
 
3.10 

Has highlight developed leadership skills to 
inspire commitment from team’s individuals 
throughout the council. 
 
Has high personal credibility and political 
sensitivity to work with elected members and a 
wide range of key stakeholders.  
 
Demonstrates a well developed strategic 
perspective that can be applied to achieve results 
in a broad range of corporate, community and 
services issues. 
 
Has the ability to plan, organise and review 
corporate systems and structures to deliver 
results and achieve continuous improvement.  
 
Can lead major changes in an inspirational way.  
 
Communicates clearly and effectively to a range 
of audiences and is confident in dealing with the 
media.  
 
High interpersonal, influencing and persuasive 
skills and is a good negotiator.   
 
Can build effective partnerships with a wide range 
of stakeholders.  
 
Shows sound judgement, balanced decision 
making and had good analytical skills.  
 
Committed, robust, resilient and has the drive and 
energy to achieve results within a challenging and 
complex environment 

Essential 
 
 
 

Essential 
 
 
 

Essential 
 
 
 
 

Essential 
 
 
 

Essential 
 
 

Essential 
 
 

Essential 
 
 

Essential 
 
 

Essential 
 
 

Essential 

ü 
 
 
 
ü 
 
 
 
ü 
 
 
 
 
ü 
 
 
 
ü 

 
 
ü 
 
 
ü 
 

 
ü 
 
 
ü 
 
 
ü 

 
 

I/T 
 
 
 

 I/T 
 
 
 

 I/T  
 
 
 
 

I/T  
 
 
 

I/T  
 
 

I/T  
 
 

I/T  
 
 

I/T 
 
 

 I/T 
 
 

I/T 
 

Key competencies 

4.1 
 
4.2 
 
4.3 
 

Degree or equivalent qualification  
 
An appropriate professional qualification  
 
Management qualification  
 

Essential 
 

Desirable 
 

Essential 
 

ü 
 
 
 

ü 
 
ü 

A 
 
 
 
A 
 

Page 41



 Description  Essential/ 
Desirable  

Method 
Application 
Interview, 
Test 

4.4 Evidence of continuing professional development Essential 
 

 
 

A 
 

 

Page 42



APPENDIX 3 

Main Conditions Of Service 
 

 
PERMANENT STAFF 

 
 
DATE:      CLOSING DATE:   
 
DIRECTORATE: Chief Executive 
 
JOB TITLE:  Chief Executive  REF NUMBER:  xx-xxxx 
 
 
This post is subject to the Joint Negotiating Committee (JN) for chief executives of local authorities 
terms and conditions as supplement by Slough Borough Council local agreements.  
 
 
Salary 
 
The chief executive grade consists of 4 incremental points, £132,544, £140,365, £149,121 and 
£159,054 and is fully inclusive of all additional elements including local weighting.  
 
Payment of Salary  
 
Your salary will be paid monthly in twelve equal payments into a bank, giro bank or building society 
account of your choice. This will be on or about the last working day of the month. 
 
Annual increments are paid on 1

st
 April each year subject to 6 months service and satisfactory 

performance against key tasks endorsed by the Leader of the council.  
 
Annual Leave   
 
Our annual leave is generous and the longer you work for us and local government the more you get.  
You are entitled to 30 days per annum per complete holiday year.   The annual leave provision is 
increased to 32 days inclusive after 5 years service. 
 
The annual leave year runs from 1 April to 31 March. 
 
The yearly entitlement is based on full time staff; for part time staff the entitlement is pro rata.  
 
You are also entitled to 8 public and bank holidays, which is pro rata for part time staff.  
 
Hours of Work 
 
37 hours a week.   However, the nature of the post and its level of seniority and responsibilities are 
such that the post holder will be expected to undertake additional hours including evening and 
weekend working as necessary to fulfil the requirements of the role.  
 
The Council supports a range of flexible working arrangements to promote work-life balance 
dependant on the operational needs of each service. 
 
Pension 
 
Unless you specifically opt out in writing, you will automatically become a member of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).   Further details are available from the council or you can link 
to the website for a Guide for New Employees to the pension fund on  
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/berks-pension/index.htm .    
 
The main benefits of being a scheme member can be found under http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/berks-
pension/LGS1B(0411)EmployerShortGuide.doc 

Page 43



APPENDIX 3 

 
You may choose to remain in or arrange your own personal pension plan (PPP), or remain in the 
State Earnings Related Pension Scheme (SERPS).   
 
 
Allowances 
 
Relocation package: 
You will be eligible to receive an allowance under the council’s relocation assistance scheme to cover 
removal and relocation expenses up to a maximum of £8,000 should you need to relocate to take up 
this post i.e. to move from outside a 26 mile radius of the council offices.  
 
Mileage allowances: 
The Council will reimburse all business mileage undertaken, whether inside or outside the borough, in 
accordance with HM Revenue and Customs rates.  Currently this will be paid at 45p/mile for the first 
10,000 business miles in the tax year and 25p for each business mile over 10,000 miles in the tax 
year.  All mileage claims need to be supported by VAT receipts. 
 
Business mileage undertaken by motorcycle or bicycle, whether inside or outside the borough, will be 
paid in accordance with HM Revenue and Customs rates, i.e. for motorcycles 24p per mile (claims to 
be supported by VAT receipts) and for bicycles (claims to be submitted) 20p per mile. 
 
These provisions are subject to review, variation and discontinuance at the Council’s discretion and/or 
in the light of operational needs. 
 
All employees who use their cars for official business must ensure that their vehicle insurance policy 
is suitably endorsed for official and authorised Council business use. 
 
Evening Meetings: 
The salary of the chief executive covers the requirement for attendance at evening meetings and at 
other unsocial times.  
 
Professional subscriptions: 
The Council will reimburse you for the cost of one professional subscription per annum if agreed by 
your Director as relevant and necessary to the fulfilment of your duties. 
 
Other schemes 
 
Other payments may be made for additional work, outstanding performance, temporary cover for 
senior staff and other special circumstances.  
 
Smoke Free 
 
Slough Borough Council is a Smoke Free Council and smoking is not permitted within any Council 
premises, non-residential buildings and Council Vehicles. 
 
Health Assessment 
 
The Council believes that screening new employees is an important management process and 
therefore you will be asked to complete a Health Assessment Questionnaire, however this is not a 
condition of employment.  As part of this process we may ask you to take a medical examination if the 
council's medical adviser feels it is necessary to the position.  Certain key members of staff are 
medically examined periodically.  The council will pay for this. 
 
Probationary period 
 
During the first six months of your appointment you will be covered by the council’s probationary 
policy and procedure.  Your work performance will be monitored closely and you will be expected to 
demonstrate your suitability for the post.  
 

Page 44



APPENDIX 3 

Political restrictions 
 
This post is politically restricted under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.   
 
This means that you can be a member of a political party but cannot hold office for that party or stand 
for election as a councillor or MP. 
 
Period of notice 
 
3 months 
 
Emergency planning 
 
Due to the seniority of this post you will be required to assist in providing an effective response on the 
part of the authority to many major civil emergencies that may arise.   This involves a range of co-
coordinative, liaison and communication tasks working both within the council’s offices and at other 
locations and can involve stand-by or call-out on a roster basis.   Training will be provided to enable 
this duty to be fulfilled.   This requirement is reflected in the grading of the post and no further 
remuneration will be payable.  
 
 

General Employment Information 
 

Data Protection Act 
The information you provide will be processed in accordance with the Data Protection Acts 1998 and 
any subsequent legislation.  
 
Equality Act 2010 
This Act protects people with disabilities from unlawful discrimination.  The Council operates a 
“Guaranteed Interview Scheme” for applicants who declare they have a ‘disability’ (as defined by the 
Equality Act 2010. Any ‘disabled’ applicant who meets the essential criteria for the job will be offered 
an interview.  
 
Definition of Disability 
The definition of disability, as outlined in the Equality Act 2010 is as follows: 
“A physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long term adverse effect on a person’s 
ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities”. 
 
To be protected under the Act, 

• An individual must have, or have had, an impairment which can be physical or mental 

• It must have adverse effects which are substantial, that is something more than minor or 
trivial.   

• It needs to be long term, i.e. the impairment has lasted or is likely to last in total for at least 
twelve months or is likely to last for the rest of the life of the person affected 

And 

• It must affect normal day-to-day activities at work on a regular basis 
 
Equal Opportunities in Employment 
Slough Borough Council is committed to being an employer of choice.  Our aim is to ensure that no 
job applicant or employee receives less favourable treatment on grounds of age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage or civil partnership, maternity and pregnancy, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation.  These are protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010.  In addition, the 
Council also recognises trade union membership and activity or any other reason which cannot be 
shown to be justified which will also result in grounds for unfair discrimination.   
 
Recruitment and selection criteria, procedures and practices will be kept under regular review to 
ensure that individuals are selected or promoted on merit.  All employees will be given equal 
opportunity and, where appropriate, training to progress within the Council. 
 

Page 45



APPENDIX 3 

Local authorities have a legal responsibility to promote Equality of Opportunity.  The Council is 
committed to the use of those statutory provisions which permit Positive Action to improve recruitment 
and access to training where disadvantaged groups are under-represented.  In particular the Council 
aims for its workforce to be representative of the local population of whom over a third are of ethnic 
minority origin. 
 
The Council continually monitors this policy to assess its effectiveness. 
 
Feedback 
Anyone who applies for a job with Slough Borough Council and is unsuccessful can arrange for verbal 
feedback to be given by contacting the Chair of the shortlisting / interview panel. 
 
Interview Expenses 
Reasonable out of pocket expenses will be reimbursed when attending for interview; travelling 
expenses are limited to 2nd class rail/bus fare.  Mileage is reimbursed at a rate of 19.8p per mile.    
Candidates will be sent their expenses by cheque after the interview.  If a candidate is invited from 
overseas, travel expenses will be calculated from the nearest airport/ seaport in this country.  
 
Pre-Employment Screening 
It is our policy to carry out checks to confirm the details on the application form/CV.  False information 
which results in an appointment will render the individual liable to dismissal without notice. 

• Proof of Qualifications 
You will be asked to produce certificates confirming your qualifications or membership of 
professional bodies that are stated in your application form/CV. 

• References 
References offered will be taken up.  We reserve the right to contact any other previous employer 
for a reference.  We will also take into consideration relevant information received from any 
source.  This may include information held by the authority, for example in social care or 
education, and information received from other external authorities or bodies. 

• Work Permit 
Under the Asylum and Immigration Act 1996, it is a criminal offence to employ anyone who is not 
entitled to live or work in the United Kingdom.  You will be asked to submit original proof of 
identification (photocopies are not acceptable), such as a birth certificate, national insurance 
number, passport or driving licence.  You will be asked to submit all marriage/relevant certificates 
in cases where you have changed your name, and previous address details.   

 
Childcare Vouchers 
Computershare Voucher Services (CVS) 
 
Childcare vouchers are a Government approved tax-efficient way of paying for childcare.  They can 
be used for children of all ages (up to 16) to pay for any Qualifying Childcare in a wide range of 
childcare settings.     
 
The table below shows how much tax and NI you can save each month if you order the maximum 
amount eligible for your tax band (figures published 2013): 
 

 If you pay Basic rate 
tax 

If you pay Higher rate 
tax 

If you pay Additional 
rate tax 

Maximum monthly 
voucher value 

£243 £124 £110 

Tax Rate 
NI 

20% 
12% 

40% 
2% 

45% 
2% 

Tax savings 
Ni Savings 

£48.60 
£29.16 

£49.60 
£2.48 

£49.50 
£2.20 

 
Total monthly savings 

£77.76 £52.08 £51.70 

 
For further, detailed information, please log onto: 

www.computersharevoucherservices.com/parentpack 

Page 46



SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:           Council       DATE: 30th January 2018 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Catherine Meek 
(For all enquiries)       Head of Democratic Services 

      (01753) 875011 
 
WARD(S): All 

 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 

APPOINTMENT TO COMMITTEES, PANELS AND OUTSIDE BODIES 
 

1.  Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 To appoint to vacancies on various committees, panels and outside bodies and to 
note an appointment made to the Employment & Appeals Committee in accordance 
with Council Procedure Rules, Part 4.1, Paragraph 1.2 (vi). 

 

2. Recommendations  
 

 The Council is requested to resolve: 
 

(a) That Members be appointed to the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee 
and the Appeals Committee in accordance with the wishes expressed by 
Political Groups in respect of the seats allocated to them. 
 

(b) That appointments of Louis Lee, David Comben and Murray Litvak to the 
Independent Panel be noted. 
 

(c) That the requirement for political proportionality, as set out in the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989, be waived with regard to the Joint 
Parenting Panel and that Councillor Coad be appointed to the vacancy on 
the Panel. 
 

(d) That the appointment of Councillor Swindlehurst to the Employment & 
Appeals Committee, made under Council Procedure Rules Part 4.1, 
Paragraph 1.2 (vi), be noted. 

 
(e) That the Lead Member for Health & Social Care, Councillor Pantelic, be 

appointed as the Council’s Outside Body representative on Berkshire 
Healthcare Foundation Trust. 

 
(f) That the revised proportionality and entitlement to committee seats as set out 

in Appendix 1 be noted and seats be allocated accordingly.   
 

3. Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy and Five Year Plan Priorities 
 
Effective, transparent and equitable decision making processes are an essential 
pre-requisite to the delivery of all the Council’s priorities. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 47



4. Other implications 
 

(a) Legal Implications 
 
The recommendations within this report meet legal requirements, primarily the 
Local Government Housing Act 1989 and associated regulations.  The Joint 
Parenting Panel is subject to political proportionality and any variation to this can 
only be agreed if no member votes against.  It is a requirement of the Council’s 
Constitution that the Employment & Appeals Committee must include at least one 
member of the Executive. 

 
(b) Financial Implications 
 
There are no other workforce, financial or other implications arising from this 
administrative report. 
 

4. Supporting Information 
 

Appointments to Committees and Panels 
 
4.1 The Council agreed new arrangements for the dismissal of Head of Paid Service, 

Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer at the meeting held on 18th May 2017.  
This included the establishment of the following new committees and panels: 

 

• Investigating and Disciplinary Committee to deal with disciplinary matters 
relating to the relevant officers.  It is a politically balanced committee of five 
Members, only one of whom is to be a member of the Executive (not the 
Leader or Cabinet Member with responsibility for human resource or 
finance). 
 

• Appeals Committee to deal with disciplinary matters short of dismissal 
relating to the relevant officers.  It is also a politically balanced committee of 
five Members, only one of whom is to be a member of the Executive (not the 
Leader or Cabinet Member with responsibility for human resource or 
finance). 

 

• Independent Panel comprising of three people appointed under section 28 of 
the Localism Act 2011 to advise Council in the event of a recommendation 
from the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee to dismiss a relevant 
officer. 

 
4.2 No appointments have yet been made to either the Investigating and Disciplinary 

Committee or the Appeals Committee and nominations have been sought from the 
Political Groups and will be reported at the meeting. 
 

4.3 The three Independent Persons appointed to the Independent Panel are Louis Lee, 
the Council’s Independent Person, and David Comben and Murray Litvak who have 
been appointed as Independent Persons at other authorities. 
 

4.4 Councillor Matloob has resigned from the Joint Parenting Panel and Councillor 
Coad has been nominated to take the vacant seat on the Panel.  In accordance with 
the requirements such a change can only be made if no member votes against. 
 

Page 48



4.5 Following the appointment of the new Cabinet by the Leader of the Council a 
number of changes to committees were required and were agreed by Council on 
19th December.  A further change needed to be made to the Employment & Appeals 
Committee as it is a requirement that it includes at least one member of the 
Executive.  The Committee meets on 25th January 2018 and an appointment was 
required prior to the Council meeting.  Councillor Michael Holledge has resigned 
from the Committee and Councillor Swindlehurst has been appointed to the 
vacancy under delegated authority in Council Procedure Rules Part 4.1, Paragraph 
1.2 (vi). 

 
Outside Bodies 
 

4.6 The Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care would normally be the Council’s 
Outside Body representative on Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust.  Councillor 
Hussain was appointed by Council on 18th May 2017 as the portfolio holder at that 
time.  Following the appointment of the new Cabinet, it is proposed that Councillor 
Pantelic be appointed as the representative for the remainder of the municipal year. 

 

Committee Membership / Proportionality 
 
Councillor Coad  

 
4.7 Members are informed that Councillor Coad has resigned from the United Kingdom 

Independence Party (UKIP) and with effect from 16th January 2018, will be an 
Independent Councillor. This change does not affect entitlement to Committee 
Places/Proportionality.    
 
Councillor Munawar 
 

4.8 A Memorial signed by a majority of the Members of the Labour Group, was received 
on 22 January 2018, advising that Councillor Munawar is no longer to be treated as 
a member of the Labour Group. Councillor Munawar is therefore an Independent 
(Labour) Councillor. 
 

4.9 Proportionality on Committee Places has therefore been re-calculated and 
Appendix 1 details entitlement to Committee Places. The result of the change in the 
membership of the Labour Group from 33 to 32 means that Labour lose one seat on 
Audit & Corporate Governance Committee. The Independent Councillors 
(Councillors Coad and Munawar) are entitled to two committee seats in total, one 
seat on the Licensing Committee and one seat on Audit and Corporate Governance 
Committee.  

   
5. Conclusion 
 
5.1 The Council is requested to note and approve the appointments to committees, 

panels and outside bodies as set out in this report. 
 

6. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 – Basket of Entitlement . 
 

7. Background Papers  
 

None. 
 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 
A
L
L
O
C
A
T
IO
N
 O
F
 S
E
A
T
S
 –
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 J
A
N
U
A
R
Y
 2
0
1
8
 

 
 

 

T
o
ta
l 
N
o
. 
o
f 

S
e
a
ts
 o
n
 B
o
d
y
 

 

L
a
b
o
u
r 

(3
2
) 

(7
6
.1
9
%
) 

 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
v
e
 

(8
) 

(1
9
.0
5
%
) 

 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

(1
) 

(2
.3
8
%
) 

 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

(1
) 

(2
.3
8
%
) 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

(E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
) 

 

 8
 

 8
 

 
 

 

 

A
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

 7
 

 

5
(5
.3
3
) 

 

1
(1
.3
3
) 

(0
.1
6
) 

1
 (
0
.1
6
) 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

9
 

7
(6
.8
5
) 

2
 (
1
.7
1
) 

(0
.2
1
) 

(0
.2
1
) 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

9
 

7
(6
.8
5
) 

2
(1
.7
1
) 

(0
.2
1
) 

(0
.2
1
) 

L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 

1
1
 

8
 (
8
.3
) 

2
 (
2
.0
9
) 

1
 (
0
.2
6
) 

(0
.2
6
) 

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
 &
 

A
p
p
e
a
ls
 

9
 

7
 (
6
.8
5
) 

2
 (
1
.7
1
) 

(0
.2
1
) 

(0
.2
1
) 

 

T
O
T
A
L
 S
E
A
T
S
 

A
L
L
O
C
A
T
E
D
 

 
4
5
 

 
3
4
 

 9
 

 1
 

 1
 

 

G
R
O
U
P
 S
E
A
T
 

E
N
T
IT
L
E
M
E
N
T
 

(B
a
s
k
e
t)
 

 
 

3
4
  

(3
4
.2
8
) 

 9
 

(8
.5
7
) 

 1
 

(1
.0
7
) 

 1
 

(1
.0
7
) 

 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO   Council    
 
DATE:    30 January 2018  
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Stuart Aislabie, Principal Asset Manager  

(01753) 477226 
       

WARD(S): Chalvey 
 

PART I  
FOR DECISION  

 
Consent for Alterations - Kashmiri Karahi Restaurant, Salt Hill Park, Slough 

 
1 Purpose of Report 
 

The purpose of this report is to request Slough Borough Council acting in its 
capacity as a corporate trustee of the Salt Hill Playing Fields Trust to agree to 
enter into a Licence for Alterations consenting to external alterations proposed by 
the tenant of the Kashmiri Karahi Restaurant (“KKR”), Salt Hill Park, Bath Road, 
consisting  of the construction of a conservatory. 

 
2 Recommendation/Proposed Actions 
 

The Council is requested to agree to enter into a Licence for Alterations with KKR 
for the construction of a conservatory at KKR, Salt Hill Park. 

3 Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, The JNA and the Five Year Plan 
 

Although the following strategies and objectives of the Council would be served by 
the actions requested of the Council in this Report, it must be borne in mind that in 
this instance the Council is acting in its capacity as the corporate trustee of the 
Salt Hill Playing Fields Trust and its considerations must therefore be governed by 
the interests of the Trust and not by the strategies and objectives of the Council in 
its capacity as the local authority. 

 
3a Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities 
 
 The proposal meets the following priorities of the Joint Wellbeing Strategy 
  
 Priority 2: Increasing life expectancy 
 The proposal will allow for investment in an existing park premises. This may have 

the wider benefit of attracting more local residents into the Salt Hill Park and make 
use of open space and facilities to improve and maintain health. 

 
3b Five Year Plan Outcomes 
 

The proposal also has the potential to make the following contributions to 
corporate objectives:  
 
Outcome 3: Slough will be an attractive place where people choose to live, 
work and visit 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 53



 

The proposal will mean investment and improvement into Salt Hill Park facility 
improving its appearance and operation. 
 

4. Other Implications 
 
(a) Financial  
 
There are no immediate financial revenue/capital spend implications as a direct 
consequence of this report.  

(b) Risk Management  
 

Risk Mitigating action Opportunities 
Community None  

Property None   

Financial None  

Legal None   

Human Rights None  

Employment None  

Planning None  

Public Consultation  None  . 

 
(c)  Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications 
 

As the subject matter of this Report relates to a lease of Property there is potential 
for the right to the protection of property in the first protocol to the Convention for 
the protection of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms to be engaged. This 
right is however subject to the qualification that it shall not in any way impair the 
right of a state to enforce such laws as it deems necessary to control the use of 
property in the general interest. It is not considered, therefore, that any challenge 
on such grounds is likely. 

The lease of KKR is a protected tenancy under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 
giving the tenant a statutory right to renewal of the lease subject to the provisions 
of that Act. The current lease is for a term of 15 years from 1 April 2015 with five 
yearly rent reviews. Under the lease the Tenant may not make not make any 
additions, alterations or improvements to the premises without the Landlord’s 
consent which the Landlord cannot unreasonably refuse. 

Under the Trust Deed of the Salt Hill Playing Fields (Appendix B) the site and 
buildings of the KKR is identified as “The Barn” and illustrations of the original 
building appear at page 13. There is a provision in the Trust Deed relating to “The 
Barn” on page 7 in the following terms: 

“The Council will maintain and manage the Barn in a manner conformable to the 
comfort and requirements for the purposes of rest and retreat of persons who do 
not play games and of females and of males engaged in games played by males 
and females together commonly known as mixed games and the refreshments 
supplied in the Barn shall be of a simple nature only and that refreshments will not 
be supplied in and from the Barn to persons other than the above mentioned as 
the persons for whose benefit the Barn is to be maintained and managed by the 
Council” 

Page 54



 

It is not considered that the grant of the licence to make the alterations requested 
would cause the Council to be in breach of this provision as in itself it does not 
prohibit any alterations to the buildings.  

It is also likely that in all the circumstances a refusal of consent could be 
considered as unreasonable and subject to challenge by the tenant. 

(d) Equalities Impact Assessment 
  
There is no identified need to carry out an EIA. 
 
(e) Land and Property Implications 

 
There are no further land and property implications beyond entering into a 
Licence for Alterations.  
 

 5. Supporting Information 
 

Background 
 
5.1 The restaurant building in Salt Hill Park is located towards the centre of the park, 

to the east of the former bowling alley and to the west of the outdoor tennis 
courts.   

 
5.2 The restaurant is currently known as the Kashmir Karahi. KKR has been in 

occupation since 2008 and in 2015 undertook a statutory renewal of its lease for 
a further 15 year term commencing on 30 June 2015.  

 

5.3 On the 7th August 2017, KKR was granted Planning Permission under ref 
P/07370/006 for the construction of a conservatory at KKR. 

5.4 The proposed conservatory consists of the erection of glazing on the lower 
ground level enclosing the area beneath the balcony that over looks the former 
bowling green.  

 

5.5 As per the terms of the renewal lease, KKR is entitled to make alterations upon 
seeking Landlord’s consent. The Trust cannot unreasonably withhold consent to 
the proposed alterations.  In this instance, I do not see any ground on which the 
Trust could withhold consent to the proposed alterations. 

 
5.6 There is no consideration that can be requested from KKR on this occasion as 

charging a premium for consent would be deemed unlawful as such alterations 
are permitted under the terms of its lease. However, KKR will be responsible for 
covering the surveyor and legal costs in dealing with this matter. 

 
5.7 The long term governance issues with regards the Trust are in the process of 

being resolved but this item needs to be resolved whilst the long term 
governance issues are being prepared to be brought to Council. The Trust is 
exposed to a legal challenge from the KKR with regards the withholding of 
consent should this issue not be resolved. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 

6. Conclusion 

 

6.1 There is no reasonable ground for refusing consent for these works, particularly 
in light of the approved Planning Application. The consent will afford continued 
investment and improvement of a park asset. 

 
7. Appendices Attached 
 
 Appendix A: Planning Consent P/07370/006 and drawings 
 Appendix B: Trust Deed of Salt Hill Playing Fields 
 
8.  Background Papers  
  

Lease of KKR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 

 
Appendix A: Planning Consent P/07370/006 and drawings 

 
 
 

Page 57



 

 
 

Page 58



 

 
 

 
 

Page 59



 

 

 

Page 60



 

 

 

Page 61



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



APPENDIX B 

�

Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



�

Page 68



�

Page 69



�

Page 70



Page 71



�

Page 72



�

Page 73



�

Page 74



�

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:     Council  DATE: 30th January, 2018  
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Shabana Kauser 
(For all enquiries)  Senior Democratic Services Officer         

(01753) 787503 
 
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 
MOTIONS SUBMITTED TO COUNCIL UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 14 
 
The following motions have been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 14:- 
 

A) Accommodation Facilities for Homelessness 

(Moved by Councillor Smith, seconded by Councillor Wright) 

“This Council resolves to: 

Enter into negotiations with London and Quadrant Housing Trust (L&Q) and 
Slough Homeless Our Concern (SHOC) to: 

• Provide a long-term base for SHOC to manage the 64 purpose-built 
temporary accommodation units at the site of The Foyer, 52 Stoke 
Road, providing specialist support and rehabilitative services for single 
homeless people and vulnerable persons of all ages to give them an 
alternative to rough sleeping.  

• Require that SBC concentrate all its staff dealing with homeless and 
related welfare problems, either within the Foyer building or the 
adjacent L&Q offices at 50 Stoke Road; with SHOC taking over the 
management and maintenance of the gym facilities shared underneath 
these two buildings that have been used as an emergency night shelter 
whenever SBC senior staff deem that necessary, under legislative 
requirements. 

• Explore the possibility of L&Q redeveloping part of the shared site of 50 
and 52 Stoke Road, particularly the carpark area, to provide some 
additional specialist supported half-way-house type accommodation for 
needy and vulnerable clients in Slough on the path toward independent 
living. 

• Rename the resultant complex of buildings and facilities the Darren 
Morris Centre, in memory of the work and special commitment of a 
councillor who died in-service a year ago striving in a non-partisan 
manner to help citizens such as these.” 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 77



 
 
 

B) Homelessness 

(Moved by Councillor Swindlehurst, seconded by Councillor Nazir) 
 

“This Council believes the Government’s response to rising homelessness is 

inadequate and has allowed the situation to become a national crisis. We 

believe more action is required to prevent homelessness, the Council 

therefore calls upon the Government to: 

 

-   Provide adequate funding to enable Councils to successfully implement the 

Homelessness Reduction Act; 

-   Ensure that changes to the way that supported housing is funded meet the 

needs that Councils have identified; 

-   Reform the legal framework for assured shorthold tenancies to give those 

renting privately greater security and certainty 

 

Furthermore this Council urgently  resolves  to step up our efforts locally to 
help prevent homelessness in Slough, support action to help people stay in 
their homes and provide additional funding to boost the supply of temporary 
accommodation in Slough.”  
 

 

Page 78



AGENDA ITEM 13

Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Council meetings held on 28th November 2017 and 19th December 2017
	Minutes , 19/12/2017 Council
	Minutes , 19/12/2017 Council EGM

	5 Recommendations of the Cabinet from its meeting held on 22nd January 2018
	6 Appointment of Interim Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service)
	7 Appointment Process for Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service)
	Recruitment of CE - Appx 1
	Recruitment of CE - Appx 2
	Recruitment of CE - Appx 3

	8 Appointment to Committees, Panels and Outside Bodies.
	Committee Appointments -Appendix 1

	9 Consent for Alterations - Kashmiri Karahi Restaurant, Salt Hill Park, Slough
	Appendix B - Trust Deed_Redacted

	10 To consider Motions submitted under procedure Rule 14.
	13 Part II Minutes - 28th November and 19th December 2017
	Part II Minutes , 19/12/2017 Council


